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“We want to create a new kind of place to help people feel well.  

It will be a place of refuge, regeneration and renewal; somewhere people can find a 

fuller, deeper and more integrated sense of themselves because it allows them to 

develop in mind, body and spirit. It will be a place where in an age of rampant, 

intelligent technology people can feel more fully human. 

The Ancient Greeks had a word for this kind of deeper flourishing and wellbeing: 

Eudaimonia!. That is what we want to help create. 

We started life in 1844 looking after young men who had just arrived in the city, often 

feeling lost and isolated, in the midst of the swirling forces of urbanisation and 

industrialisation. The aim then was to help people retain a sense of humanity amidst 

economic upheaval and social ferment that threatened to uproot and overwhelm 

them from industrialisation and urbanisation to conflict and war. 

That ambition to help people feel more fully human is still our driving force. 

First and foremost, the YMCA is a community: accepting, open to all, non-

judgemental.  

 

Excerpt of introduction to: 

EUDAIMONIA! CALLING HOW TO BE WELL IN 21ST CENTURY LONDON 

Rosi Prescott - Central YMCA CEO & Charles Leadbeater – Author, journalist and political advisor  
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Chair’s Introduction 

Mark Andrews 

Chair, Central YMCA 

 

 

As the founding Association of the now global 

YMCA Movement, Central YMCA has been 

helping young people improve their lives for 

over 170 years, evolving throughout that time to 

address the challenges faced by the 

communities we work with and to support the 

needs of each new generation as they arise. 

It gives me great pleasure, as I take on the role of 

Chair, to introduce the Trustees’ Annual Report, which 

sets out for our members, partners and the general 

public what we have achieved in the past twelve 

months, along with our future plans. 

I was delighted to be invited to Chair the Board of 

Trustees in June 2017 and since taking on this role I 

have been impressed and encouraged by the stories 

of how Central YMCA positively impacts upon the 

lives of the people we serve, whether it be through 

their long-term membership at our award-winning Club 

on Tottenham Court Road in Central London or 

through the start of new careers and brighter futures 

via our highly-respected education and skills 

provision.    

The merger of YMCA Training into the Central YMCA 

Group has proved a tough three-year journey, 

culminating now in the transfer of people and assets 

from all subsidiary charities into one united charitable 

organisation.  

This process has required a significant degree of 

change and substantial investment in order to align 

and redefine our cultures and ambitions, thus ensuring 

that all our activity is as efficient and effective as it can 

be. It has been a tough challenge in an environment of 

ever increasing funding pressures and strong 

competition from commercial operators. 

The new corporate plan, from Autumn 2017, 

articulates our four-year, medium term strategic aims, 

with short-term priorities for 2018 focusing on brand 

unification within the new merged charity, financial 

stability, continued investment in technology, the re-

imagination of the Club’s community spaces and 

iconic swimming pool, alongside a refreshed and 

energetic focus on our people and the development of 

a culture of innovation. 

An even greater emphasis on building partnerships 

with likeminded organisations, enabling us to pool 

expertise and resources, will also ensure that we are 

better placed to deal with the increasing funding 

pressures being widely felt across the sector. These 

initiatives will enable us to continue working alongside 

some of the most vulnerable in our communities. 

On behalf of the Board I would like to thank our 

excellent staff and volunteers for their continuing hard 

work and dedication. Our Chief Executive, Rosi 

Prescott, and her senior team have continued to 

provide strong and determined leadership during a 

prolonged period of change.  

I should also like to thank our Trustees on the Board 

for their ongoing support and commitment to the 

charity. A particular thank you must go to Philip 

Rogerson who leaves a tremendous legacy, having 

steered Central YMCA as Chair through the YMCA 

Training merger during the six years of his tenure. 

Thank you, too, to our long serving and passionate 

Deputy Chair, Lord Hayward OBE, who retired from 

the Board in September. Lord Hayward has been an 

invaluable member of the Board over the past six 

years and we know that he will continue to be a strong 

supporter and advocate of the charity. 

A final heartfelt thanks is owed to David Bennison who 

served on the Board for 45 years until 2014 and has 

since served on our YMCA Training Board until the 

merger in July. He has provided continuity and 

perspective, borne of rich experience gained through 

the decades of his service, both as a chair and 

Trustee during that time. 

As we all look to the year ahead and the next phase of 

evolution of Central YMCA, I personally look forward 

to working with the Board, Rosi and our partners as 

we strive to achieve our ambitious goals. 
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Chief Executive’s Statement 

Rosi Prescott 

Chief Executive, Central YMCA 

  

 

 

Those of us working with young people know the 

importance of remaining flexible and fluid, with an 

open ear to the ground, especially in a society where 

the pace of change seems to gather speed at an 

exponential rate. Always-on digital communication, 

widening gaps between rich and poor and increasingly 

sedentary lifestyles are all impacting upon the 

experience of being young in modern Britain. Young 

people can be amongst the most vulnerable in society 

so support is vital when needed, however at Central 

YMCA we are conscious that this support must move 

with the times if it is to be truly effective. 

The iconic red YMCA triangle, instantly recognisable 

across the world, represents the individual’s need for 

balance in mind, body and spirit in order to achieve a 

state of wellness, wellbeing or ‘essential unity’. This 

year saw us engaging with a variety of expert and 

visionary partners and stakeholders as we launched a 

new movement – Eudaimonia!  This collaboration is 

helping us capture their thoughts and voices, also 

ensuring that any future ideas for programmes and 

services fully resonate with and recognise the 

importance of building positive relationships as well as 

balancing individual needs. The new strategic plan 

encourages grass roots innovation alongside support 

for incubator community programmes in the Club’s 

newly refurbished event spaces from January 2018. 

The work we do across the breadth of the UK, through 

the delivery of YMCA Training and YMCAfit Study 

Programmes, Traineeships and Apprenticeships to 

those in the most challenging of circumstances, 

continues to be one of the cornerstones of our 

strategy and purpose. The journey of transformation 

undertaken by YMCA Training over the last three 

years was ultimately recognised and was reflected in 

the award of our recent Ofsted Grade 2 in every 

category that was assessed. This was a considerable 

and important achievement by the teams in YMCA 

Training and Central YMCA, working in harmony. 

“Leaders and managers have a clear vision for 

the future of their organisation, which is to 

enable young people, through education and 

training, to flourish and fulfil their potential. 

They have now underpinned this vision with 

well-considered operational strategies which 

aim to meet ambitious targets set by trustees, 

leaders and managers.” Ofsted 2017 

The financial period has been characterised by a 

concerning operational deficit that was higher than 

forecast. Strong measures have been implemented in 

the form of significant restructuring activity, with 

simultaneous investment in our infrastructure 

necessary to ensure the future flourishing of our 

operations. This, alongside deep systems and process 

reviews, has naturally been challenging for all involved 

and I wholeheartedly commend the staff for their 

resilience and positivity in the face of so much 

sweeping, contemporaneous change.   

The new business models that have emerged from 

this exercise will support the charity as we journey 

towards ever greater flexibility and scalability; enabling 

us to respond faster and smarter to market and social 

forces and funding/partnership opportunities that may 

arise.  

The leadership team greatly value the expertise and 

contribution of the staff and volunteers, including our 

Trustees, who give up their time to support our work. 

We continue to be committed to placing the 

experience of our staff, alongside the experience of 

our beneficiaries, at the heart of everything we do.  

This is an exciting and invigorating time and I am 

confident that Central YMCA is poised to move 

forward as a stronger, unified charity. Tough decisions 

will still need to be taken as we conclude the 

infrastructure and operational redesign projects 

started in 2017, but true commitment to our values 

and purpose will ensure we remain tightly connected 

to our communities, reflecting the ethos and principles 

of Eudaimonia in all we do. 
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Philip Start 

YMCA Training Apprentice of the Year 

 

 

 
“I feel like I’m very well-liked by clients – 

they always want to come and have a chat 

with me, which I love!” 
 
Philip left sixth form with the desire to pursue a career 

in the fitness industry and worked his way through 

some tough obstacles to become a fitness instructor.  

 

Leaving sixth form with BTEC qualifications, Philip 

knew that university was not for him – he believed the 

apprenticeship route was a lot more practical and 

efficient at attaining the qualities and knowledge he 

needed to successfully become a fitness instructor. 

 

Philip enrolled onto a YMCAfit Level 2 Gym Instructor 

Apprenticeship in September 2015 and completed it in 

September 2016 while he simultaneously worked as 

an apprentice Fitness Instructor at Abbeycroft Leisure, 

Suffolk. 

 

 

Philip’s apprenticeship journey, however, was 

anything but easy. Some months into not only juggling 

studying, coursework deadlines, and working, Philip 

was unfortunately kicked out of his family home.  This 

resulted in Philip living in a youth hostel for the rest of 

his time studying and working, which was a very 

unfortunate situation – Philip, however, was 

determined that his situation would not prevent him 

reaching his goal: “this made it harder to concentrate 

on coursework and revision, so everything was quite 

stressful, but I chose to remain calm.” 
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Trustees’ Annual Report 

Structure, Governance and Management 

Governing document 

Central YMCA is a company limited by guarantee governed by its Articles of Association dated 1911 and last 

updated in June 2017. It is registered as a charity with the Charity Commission. There are currently 18 Full 

Members (18 in 2016).   

Reference and administration details can be found on the final page of this report. 

Charitable objects  

The charitable objects of the Association, as set out in its articles (last reviewed in June 2017), are to promote and 

assist the advancement of the spiritual, social, intellectual and physical condition of principally young men and 

women (but without any specific restriction as to age) and aims to: 

I. Provide a welcome to Members and beneficiaries for themselves, in a meeting place which is theirs to share, 

where friendship can be made and counsel sought 

II. Develop activities which stimulate and challenge its Members and beneficiaries in an environment that enables 

them to take responsibility and find a sense of achievement 

III. Involve all Members in care and work for others 

IV. Create opportunities for exchanging views, so that its Members can improve their understanding of the world, of 

themselves and of one another 

V. Relieve or assist in the relief of persons of all ages who are in conditions of need, hardship or distress by 

reason of their social, physical or economic circumstances. 

Appointment of Trustees 

Trustees are elected by the Members at the annual general meeting. The Board may appoint additional Trustees 

during the year, but any Trustee so appointed must be elected at the following annual general meeting. The charity 

must have a minimum of three Trustees at any time and the Nominations Committee supports the recruitment of 

Trustees through a range of methods including the use of specialised recruitment agencies as well as direct 

applications.  
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Trustees’ induction and training 

All the Trustees undertake induction and on-going training to ensure that they quickly become effective and are 

aware of developments in corporate and charity governance. Every Trustee is issued with a personal copy of a 

comprehensive handbook. They meet key members of staff and are briefed about the activities. In addition to formal 

meetings, there are days at which Trustees and staff meet to hold discussions regarding the future direction of the 

organisation and where other matters can be discussed on a more informal basis. 

Organisation

 

The Board of Trustees administers the Association. They meet at least quarterly and there is an Audit and Risk sub-

committee, which meets between Trustee meetings. Further sub-committees meet regularly, currently on average 

once a quarter; one to oversee the Association’s investments, and another to review the Trustee structure, size, 

composition, balance of skills, knowledge and experience, and make recommendations with regard to any changes 

that are deemed desirable; further committees consider compliance matters and the Charity’s Safeguarding & 

Prevent and Health & Safety obligations. A Remuneration Committee has also been established to oversee staff 

pay and benefits across the Association and a new Training and Education Committee looks at learner achievement 

and quality of delivery across our education functions. The Chief Executive is appointed by the Trustees to manage 

the day-to-day operations of the whole group supported by the Group Finance Director. To facilitate effective 

operations, the Chief Executive has delegated authority, within the terms of delegation approved by the Trustees, 

for finance, employment and operational activity.  

Group Structure 

The Association has five wholly owned subsidiary companies.  

  

Central YMCA Board

Audit and Risk 
Committee

Safeguarding 
and Health & 

Safety 
Committee

Investment 
Committee

Nomination 
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Training & 
Education 
Committee

Regulatory 
Compliance 
Committee

Central YMCA Board

Charity number: 213121
Company number: 119249

YMCA Training

Charity number: 1091612
Company number: 4379109

Central YMCA Trading 
Limited

Company number: 3667206

Y Hotel Limited

Company number: 1459496 
(dormant)

London Central YMCA Ltd

Charity number: 1001043
Company number: 2551972

YMCA Fitness Recruitment 
Limited

Company number: 4819048 
(dormant)
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At the end of the financial period on 31 July 2017 all assets and liabilities of the Association’s active subsidiaries 

(excluding YMCA Trading) were transferred to the Central YMCA parent entity in order to strengthen the Charity’s 

brand identity, increase operational flexibility and maximise economies of scale through merging certain operational 

activities of the group. 

 YMCA Training acted as a national training provider, providing education and employment opportunities for 

young people.  

 London Central YMCA Limited ran the Yfit training courses to equip individuals to work in the fitness industry.  

The brand names YMCA Training and Yfit will continue to be used by Central YMCA to reflect our vocational 

education delivery programmes. 

 Central YMCA Trading Ltd provides sports facilities, markets items derived from the activities of the Association 

and undertakes other non-primary purpose trading activities. The profits of this subsidiary are paid by gift aid to 

the Association. 

Central YMCA, as the founding YMCA, was also part of the YMCA Movement in England during the period. 

Accounting period change 

Within the financial period, it was decided by Trustees to extend the accounting period for 2017 from 31 March 2017 

to 31 July 2017 and align the Charity’s financial planning and reporting cycle with the majority of its funding cycles. 

Therefore, the current year figures cover the sixteen-month period from 1 April 2016 to 31 July 2017, while the 

comparative results cover the 12 month period to 31 March 2016. 
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Public Benefit 

Statement 

The Trustees confirm that they have complied 

with their duty, in section 4 of the Charities Act 

2011, to have due regard to the Charity 

Commission’s general guidance on public 

benefit.  

Objectives and activities 

The purpose of the Association is enshrined in its 

objects, which are to provide for the spiritual, 

physical, intellectual and social welfare of 

people of all ages in accordance with the Christian 

basis of the Association. The purpose in turn forms the 

bedrock of the overarching vision of the charity to 

support the development of healthy, happy and 

more fulfilled lives for our communities, 

especially young people and those in need.  

 

The Trustees ensure that this purpose is carried out for 

public benefit through a commitment to work with all 

people and all partners. Working with local and 

national government, the public and private sectors to 

help individuals and organisations to grow and bring 

lasting benefits, through training, education and 

inclusion. 

The overarching strategic aims of the Association are 

in line with our mission: 

 to create, provide and promote opportunities to 

develop in mind, body and spirit, especially for the 

young and those in need 

  

 

 

 

 

The principal activities for the year were to provide:  

 a broad range of relevant training programmes, in 

the form of vocational and work-based learning 

programmes and continuous professional 

development courses, delivered through YMCA 

Training and YMCAfit, with identified opportunities 

for progression, enabling young people to gain the 

personal skills, qualifications and experience 

needed to participate fully and progress in life and 

work  

 fitness and exercise facilities at the Club and 

OneKX, designed to encourage people of all ages 

to improve their health, particularly targeting young 

people and groups with specific needs, such as 

those living with HIV/AIDS, by devising innovative 

programmes specifically to boost their physical 

and mental well-being; with prices reduced or 

waived where appropriate 

 a wide range of nationally recognised vocational 

qualifications developed and managed by YMCA 

Awards from Level 1 to Level 4 for those 

undertaking suitable courses run by third parties in 

the UK, Europe and the rest of the world 
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Our Activities 

YMCA Training is one of the largest charity training 

providers in the country and the holder of substantial 

contracts with the Government’s major education 

funding agency, the Education and Skills Funding 

Agency (ESFA). YMCA Training provides education 

and opportunities for employment for young people 

and adults, irrespective of their background and 

experience. This benefits them as individuals, 

enabling them to develop confidence in their potential 

and capitalise on the possibilities open to them, and 

also benefits local businesses and communities. 

Some of the work is strategically based in socially and 

economically disadvantaged communities; supporting 

the vulnerable and those on low incomes; those who 

have low prior attainment and who are facing personal 

challenges alongside those needing support through 

life transitions.  

YMCA Training offers a broad portfolio of education, 

training and employment services. Its activities can be 

categorised as follows: 

 Post-16 educational Study Programmes in 

preparation for Apprenticeships and/or 

employment 

 Vocational training programmes (Apprenticeships, 

Advanced Apprenticeships and Traineeships) 

 CPD opportunities and accredited courses for 

employers 

 Pre 16 Alternative Education provision for young 

people who have not thrived in a formal education 

environment 

 

 

YMCAfit has enjoyed a long-standing reputation for 

training industry-leading training in health, well-being 

and fitness training. The operation ensures that the 

emphasis for students is not only on the latest 

research, but also on showing empathy and 

supporting individuals to achieve their individual goals. 

Customers for YMCAfit courses range from those 

aspiring to train elite athletes to those wishing to 

improve the quality of life for mobility impaired people.  
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YMCA at One KX provides London with a dedicated 

centre for enriching mind, body and spirit, through a 

schedule of classes such as Pilates and yoga, 

including free and discounted courses. Instructor 

training programmes are also provided that encourage 

personal growth, promote tolerance and build health in 

mind, body and spirit for all. Space is available to rent 

daily, weekly and monthly for charities and 

educational providers that complement the centre’s 

mind body programmes. 

YMCA at One KX is the UK's only Licensed Training 

Centre for STOTT PILATES®. 

YMCA Awards (formerly CYQ), is an international 

awarding organisation, offering professional 

qualifications and learning resources for those starting 

or developing their careers, predominantly in the 

health and fitness sector.  

YMCA Awards certificates over 25,000 qualifications 

every year across Britain and 9 other countries and 

accredits qualifications that are currently delivered by 

more than 400 education providers.   

 

YMCA Club is the largest Health and Fitness facility in 

Central London, located in the heart of the West End. 

The Club focuses on the health and wellbeing of local 

workers, residents and schoolchildren.  The 

catchment area for the numerous and varied 

community programmes run both on-site and in local 

schools spreads across the boroughs of Camden, 

Islington and Westminster, whilst core memberships 

(individual and corporate) can be mapped more 

locally, often within a half-mile radius of the facility.  

Within this radius are 19 other clubs of varying size, 

making the area one of the most competitive in the 

UK.   

The Club encourages people from all walks of life to 

improve their health, and provides a welcoming space 

for a broad range of healthy living and community 

groups in line with the Charity’s strategic objectives. 

There is a particular focus on societal groups, such as 

our older adult community, local children (through our 

YActive programme) children and young people at risk 

and those not in education. The Club also supports 

members living with HIV, for whom it operates specific 

programmes designed to boost participants’ physical 

and mental well-being. The Club’s open-door 

accessibility policy, together with special rates for the 

unemployed and disadvantaged groups, ensures that 

access is available to all, whatever their situation. 

Each area of the Club’s programme is delivered by 

specialist-qualified staff, and is supported by over 200 

volunteers fulfilling a variety of roles. 
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Jade Simmons 

YMCAfit Personal Trainer 

 

 

 
“My instructor was fantastic and really 

understanding. He helped make things 

simple and easier to take in, and really 

helped with my confidence. You would never 

guess I came from being in a wheelchair.” 

 
For Jade Simmons, it was a life-changing decision 

that led to a career in fitness – six years after being 

told that she would never walk again. 

Jade, 25, first came to the YMCA Club back in 2007. 

She hoped to rebuild her strength and combat the mild 

depression she encountered following a serious car 

accident which hospitalised her for three months and 

left her wheelchair bound through most of her 

recovery period. 

With help from Club staff, Jade’s exercise programme 

aimed at increasing her walking and strengthening her 

weaker left-hand side: “It was the best thing that ever 

happened to me and I loved it.”  

She went from strength to strength and, before long, 

had completed a Coachability course that enabled her 

to help others with similar disabilities to become more 

active.  

Jade started to turn the seemingly impossible, back to 

possible. Gaining a YMCAfit Level 2 Gym Instructor 

qualification, followed by a Level 3 Diploma in 

Personal Training, Jade’s determination grew. 

“I had mild to moderate brain damage. I was on a lot 

of medication and needed 24-hour care” she recalls. “I 

couldn’t do the basic things like having a bath on my 

own or making a cup of tea.” 
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Group Strategic Report 

Achievements and performance 

A year in review 

Final 12 months of the financial period to 31 July 2017 
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The financial period in review 

16 months to 31 July 2017 vs 12 months in the prior financial year to March 2016 

Share of the deficit/surplus contribution from each of the charitable operations (excluding restructuring costs):  

Operation  Commentary  2017 

16 
mont

hs 

£’000 

2016 

12 months 

£’000 

YMCA 
Training 

Whilst significant cost savings have been made compared to the prior year, the full benefit 
has yet to be seen and although controls were put in place to support the remaining 
centres, learner recruitment was affected in year by the restructuring activity. 
Apprenticeship recruitment was significantly impacted by the introduction of the Levy. 

(2,39
1) 

(2,347)  

The Club Income remained flat on prior year. (612) (425)  

YMCAfit Income remained consistent with prior year; however, new systems for recognition of 
committed costs at year end resulted in a significant accrual and impact on expenditure 
offsetting good work in year to manage cost base. In addition, following a review, the 
allocation of support costs to YMCAfit was increased in the year 

(638) 12  

One KX Non-trading income at OneKX was in line with the prior period for the 16 months. However 
commercial trading income from activities at this site increased in the period and are 
reflected in the commercial trading numbers below. 

(91) (61) 

YMCA 
Awards 

Sales were down circa 9% in a market where colleges’ spend on fitness qualifications 
were adversely impacted by changes in government funding. 

(780) (602)  

Overall deficit from charitable operations (4,51
2)  

(3,301) 

Net investment income and surplus on commercial trading    765  394 

Net outgoing resources for the period before restructuring costs and voluntary donations and gains 
and losses on investments and revaluations 

(3,74
7)  

(2,907) 

Voluntary 
Income 

  
22    6  

Restructuring 
costs  

Spend relating to centre closures and consolidation of back office functions to reflect a 
new leaner organisational structure. 

(759) 
                       

(705) 

Net outgoing resources for the period before gains and losses on investments and revaluations (4,48
4)  

(3,612) 

 

 

Other financial KPIs 
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Financial review 

For the Central YMCA Group, 2017 saw a successful 

and strategically important Ofsted visit; the merger of 

our two training operations, YMCA Training and 

YMCAfit, under a single Education and Skills provision 

within the Association and the extension of the 

financial period to 31 July 2017, creating a one off 16-

month accounting period. Key non-financial 

performance indicators focused on learner 

achievement, learner numbers and achieving an 

improved outcome from an expected Ofsted 

inspection whilst key financial performance indicators 

tracked planned spend against the next phase of 

organisational investment and transformation and 

contributions from the trading operations.  

Further planned restructuring activity in YMCA 

Training was essential to ensure that the Charity could 

overcome the year on year trading losses seen by this 

operation. The cost base of this provision is now 

reflective of the size of its contracts and based out of 

fewer strategically located training centres around the 

country. A future focus on developing a more scalable 

staffing model, with an equally scalable supporting 

infrastructure, will ensure that the operation is better 

structured to compete with other national training 

providers in the new further education and 

apprenticeship landscape.  

The overall financial deficit of £2,022k for the 16-

month financial period can be analysed as follows: 

  2017  2016  

  16 months 12 months 

   £’000   £’000  

Overall deficit (2,022)  (2,641)  

Investment losses / (gains) (2,419)  316  

Property revaluation gains (43) (1,287)  

Restructuring costs   766        705  

     

Deficit from operating 
activities 

(3,632)  (2,907)  

 

The increased deficit from the operating activities is 

reflective of an additional 4 months’ activities and the 

cost impact of more accurate accruals as a result of 

the implementation of a new finance purchase order 

system. 

 

These results remain concerning and performance 

has been under detailed scrutiny in the period. 

Trustees are reassured that measures put in place to 

stem the deficit and turn the loss-making operations 

around are beginning to reap rewards. In fact, the 

YMCA Training operation demonstrated significant 

improvements in financial management and 

performance in the final quarter of 2017 and this is set 

to continue into the new financial year.  

Expenditure on charitable activities exceeded income 

from those activities in 2017 with a combined deficit 

before restructuring costs of £4,512k compared to a 

deficit of £3,301k in the prior year, Net ‘commercial’ 

trading income of £730k in the period was up on last 

year (2016 £530k); however, in the main this is due to 

the extended financial period.  

Trustees increased their support to senior employees 

in 2016 with monthly YMCA Training board meetings; 

scrutinising the performance of YMCA Training closely 

to ensure that all action is being taken to address any 

issues that arise and to mitigate any future losses 

within the organisation. As YMCA Training merges 

formally into the parent charity, ongoing dialogue with 

the Trustees will continue in the form of monthly 

performance reports. 

The balance sheet shows net current liability of £1.8m; 

however, £1.5m of this is a loan held against 

investments on a three-month rolling term. Working 

capital is being closely managed during this time of 

investment and restructure. The valuation of the Club 

on Great Russell St does not reflect the added value 

of the building works at completion and therefore is 

expected to increase in 2018. Overall reserves of 

£28.8m with £14.6m in cash and investments (2016 

£14.9m) put the group in a strong position to continue 

to support the restructuring and repositioning of YMCA 

Training and the necessary investment in the Club to 

create a strong, sustainable charity. 

The greatest risk to the charity is the erosion of 

reserves, if deficits as seen in the previous two years 

continue. However; due to the remedial action that 

has been enacted, or is planned, to address losses 

across the Central YMCA group, combined with the 

healthy reserve position, the Trustees are confident 

that the charity remains a going concern. 
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YMCA Training the journey since merger 

Over the last three years we have worked hard to meet challenges head on and find ourselves with a model that: 

 Delivers far better quality for learners and businesses by every measure 

 Is far less dependent on centres making it more flexible 

 Has a staff structure allowing double the beneficiaries per employee which becomes financially sustainable 
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YMCA Training  

“Leaders and managers have developed robust 

ways of improving the quality of the provision 

and its outcomes, which have transformed the 

culture of YMCA Training and significantly 

increased learners’ and apprentices’ progress” 

– Ofsted 2017 

The Trustees believe that the work of YMCA Training, 

through its Education (16-19 Study programme and 

Traineeships delivery) and Skills (adult learning and 

Apprenticeship delivery) functions, brings great benefit 

to society and is key to achieving the overarching 

aims of Central YMCA. However, it is recognised that 

the merger of YMCA Training into the wider Central 

YMCA organisation has been both culturally and 

financially a greater challenge than anticipated when 

we initially acquired the Charity. Since 2013 there has 

been wholescale change to the national education 

agenda, with the significant cuts in the FE sector 

compounded by the introduction of the Apprenticeship 

reforms which impacted upon progress with 

organisational turnaround.  

The greatest risk to our training provision is the 

reliance on government contracts; however, due to the 

current political focus on Apprenticeships and 

importance of vocational education and our 

established presence in the market, the likelihood of 

significant contract variations for 2018 is deemed low 

at this time.   

2017 was another concerning deficit period for YMCA 

Training where income targets were not met and with 

predicted cost savings slow to realise; however, 

operational performance was seen to improve over 

the 16 months and the deficit overall is lower than 

2016 with a £2,391k loss over a 16-month period for 

2017 compared to the £2,347k loss in the 12 months 

of 2016 (before restructuring costs). The positive 

impact of the restructuring activity at the beginning of 

the financial period was observed in the final quarter, 

with a year on year improvement in contribution in the 

quarter of £39k (2017 £73k vs 2016 £112k) despite 

this being during traditionally the slowest 

Apprenticeship recruitment period and with the 

introduction of the Apprenticeship Levy.  

 

In the final twelve months of the financial year (the 

2017 academic year) the Skills team supported 2,917 

learners on apprenticeships (2,859 learners in 2016), 

with 64% achieving all their study aims (vs 62% 2016; 

66% national average for private training providers 

2016). Trustees and the leadership team are 

particularly pleased with the Charity growing 

Apprenticeship learner numbers during a period of 

unprecedented market uncertainty and the 

introduction of the Levy system.  

With a focus on quality of provision for 2016 and 2017 

and necessary planned site closures, the new 

Education estate is reflected in reduced Study 

Programme learner numbers for the period (689 

learners in 2017, 1,108 in 2016). However, the 

improved quality of provision has supported 50% 

learners on study programmes (most of whom were 

not in education, employment or training (NEET) when 

starting with us) to progress onto either further 

education at college or employment (44% 2016).  

Probably the greatest achievement in 2017 was the 

attainment of an Ofsted Grade 2 GOOD rating by the 

Charity for its education provision and a recognition 

that the work to date is having a direct impact on 

learner outcomes. This GOOD grade now opens 

funding opportunities to the Charity which were 

previously inaccessible. 

Our Annual Awards ceremony in March 2017, held 

again this year in the Houses of Parliament, 

celebrated the success of those learners who have 

excelled in a range of qualifications, from our 16-18 

Study Programme to higher level Apprenticeships; 

often achieving in the face of extreme challenges and 

difficulties. A special employer award was given this 

year to our Apprenticeship scheme partner, 

Manchester United, who have been working with 

YMCA Training for over 25 years. 
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YMCA Awards 

YMCA Awards continues to feel the impact of recent 

major structural changes to the qualifications 

framework by OFQUAL and ESFA, creating a difficult 

and more competitive commercial climate. 

The key risks for YMCA Awards continue to be an 

over-reliance on indirect receipt of public subsidy from 

further education colleges and a small group of 

products accounting for half of all revenues. This 

overreliance on a limited portfolio, in light of the policy 

changes described, has seen reduced revenues in the 

period with 2017 income of £2,267k; circa 9% down 

month on month compared to last year (£1,877k 2016 

for 12 months). YMCA Awards has reviewed and 

rationalised its current active leisure product portfolio 

and decommissioned loss-making qualifications whilst 

beginning to widen its portfolio into new categories 

with a greater digital emphasis. YMCA Awards won an 

industry award in 2017 for Digital Innovation of the 

Year from the Federation of Awarding Bodies. 

In the financial period, 33,820 learners (29,128 in 

2016) were registered across 80 (80 in 2016) 

vocational qualifications, with 23,067 certificates 

issued to learners who had successfully passed their 

assessment.  

 

YMCAfit  

YMCAfit income of £4,399k over the 16 months in 

2017 is in line with the prior year (£3,342k 2016) 

despite the current economic climate and the 

competitive market; core course sales were affected 

by external market forces in Q1 and Q2 however 

increases in Q3 ensured income overall remained at 

FY16 levels. The projected work based learning 

achievement rate of 79% for learners in the 2017 

academic year represents a fall on the previous year 

(91% 2016), however, this is significantly higher than 

the comparative national average (73%).   

A total of 4262 students completed courses over the 

2017 16-month financial period (compared to 3921 in 

the 12 months of 2016). The flexible staffing model 

has set a strong benchmark for the rest of the Charity 

to look to emulate in its ambition to become more 

scalable in its delivery model.  

Three InstructAbility courses were delivered benefiting 

31 students living with disability throughout England. 

We are currently working with Aspire, a registered 

charity, to secure additional funding in order to 

continue delivering this award-winning project. Our 

relationship with Help for Heroes saw the 

development of the Help for Heroes/YMCAfit diploma 

in personal training delivered to a further 21 service 

personnel at Tadworth House recovery centre. We 

continue to work with partners to support leisure 

operators in providing more inclusive and accessible 

physical activity opportunities for disabled people 

resulting in an improved “Quest” assessment (UK 

quality mark for operators).  

During the year, eight students had training funded by 

the Basil Scott fund, a designated fund awarding 

educational grants in the name of the late Mr. Scott. 

This funding was used jointly with the Dame Kelly 

Holmes Trust fund to deliver an additional “Get on 

Track” programme in the Club, supporting 15 young 

people into employment.   

One KX class and workshop participation continues to 

grow and is now delivering to approximately 700 

participants monthly (compared with 600 per month on 

average in 2016). We continue to engage with South 

Camden Youth Access Point and Camden Council to 

support our growing community offering and YMCAfit 

continues to be a “Partner of Distinction” with 

Merrithew Pilates at One KX.    
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YMCA Club 

Maintaining core membership sales in the Club 

continues to be the greatest challenge for the team, 

influenced by the increasing number of direct 

competitors (particularly those emerging from the 

‘budget club’ sector) and a shift away from the 

traditional route of purchasing membership and 

longer-term contracts. Core membership numbers 

closed the period at 3,364, a 9% net decrease over 

the period. However, the growth seen in ‘pay as you 

go’ memberships, either purchased directly or through 

‘third party’ providers such as PayasUGym and 

MoveGB, continues and supported the overall 

achievement of membership revenue targets. At peak 

times during the period, the Club hosted over 1,228 

users per day, and over the period recorded 

attendance of over 92,932 across the extensive group 

exercise programme. 

The Community Programme grew over the period, 

with total membership numbers closing at 3,018 in line 

with the prior year. The Community Programme now 

offers 14 sub-programmes which prioritise young 

people and those in need, some in partnership with 

other organisations and all subsidised by the charity 

with minimal external funding.  

Medical referral programmes saw 184 referrals and 

the Y-Active Children’s Programme supported 1,656 

children, with 493 days of free play scheme access for 

local disadvantaged children through a bursary funded 

by the St Giles Hotel ‘Hotels with a Heart’ scheme 

between August 2016 and July 2017. Youth 

Programme membership is now circa 665 (550 2016), 

and the Young Health Champions peer mentoring 

programme remains active and delivering sessions to 

young people across the boroughs. The Get on Track 

programme, delivered in partnership the Dame Kelly 

Holmes Legacy Trust, supported 45 young people this 

financial period, with some outstanding examples of 

long-term behavior changes and progression into full-

time employment.  

 

Fixed assets 

Running alongside the continuation and development 

of the existing programmes in the Club, work began in 

2017 on the second phase of the Club Refurbishment 

project with the renovation of communal areas, 

meeting rooms and multi-use spaces as well as a full 

renovation of the iconic swimming pool. The work is 

expected to be completed and the pool re-opened in 

January 2018.  

The principal changes in the fixed assets of the group 

were additions of £722k (£216k in 2016), out of which 

£596k related to the refurbishment works in the Club 

and the £43k re-valuation of the long leasehold 

properties. 

Employment policies 

The Trustees recognise the importance of good 

communications and relations between management 

and employees. The Association and its subsidiaries 

are an equal opportunity employer and do not 

discriminate on the grounds of disability, age or 

gender.  

Staff communication is provided through regular 

updates, emails and briefings from line managers and 

an active Human Resources team.  

Central YMCA is currently assisted in its work by over 

two hundred volunteers who run activities and the 

same policies are applied to them as to employees. 

The charity would not be able to pay these volunteers 

for their support at the same rate as an equivalent 

employee or external individual, however their 

contribution is essential in order to maintain the range 

of community programmes on offer and deliver 

against our charitable aims. 

The Remuneration Committee of the Trustee Board 

governs the benefits received by key management 

personnel. Benefits are determined by a role 

evaluation and external benchmarking. 
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Estelle Leake 

Tutor of the Year 

 

 

 
“Every day is different and you have the 

personal needs of the learners to consider.”

Estelle was looking at progressing further with her 

career, and that was when she found YMCA Training, 

Doncaster.  

Estelle started as a YMCA tutor, where her job 

entailed inductions and functional skills’ maths. 

Following a restructure in August 2016, just before 

she went on maternity leave, Estelle was offered the 

role of GCSE tutor for maths, which she accepted and 

started, post-maternity, in March 2016. 

Estelle teaches 30 hours a week, plans her lessons at 

home every evening, and occasionally travels to other 

centres to deliver training/attend meetings.  

She is so committed to her role and to the learners at 

YMCA Training, Doncaster that Estelle sat the GCSE 

maths exam last year to ensure she had the 

knowledge and skills to help learners achieve the 

qualification.  

Furthermore, Estelle is also looking into a Level 5 

Education and Training diploma, which she plans to 

pay for and to complete on top of full-time work and 

being a mum to a 1 year old. 



    THE CENTRAL YOUNG MEN’S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION and subsidiary undertakings 19 

 Trustees’ Annual Report (incorporating the Group Strategic Report) and consolidated financial statements  

 
 

 

ymca.co.uk 

ESTABLISHED 1844 

Plans for future periods 

Our new corporate strategy, launched to all staff in spring 2017, and starting in the autumn of 2017 articulates a 

new combined charity focus with clear 2 year strategic priorities centered around: 

 Brand unification within the new merged charity 

 Achievement of a long term, financially sustainable and scalable operational model  

 The reinvention of our business development, new product development and partnership management 

processes through continued investment in technology and a solid digital platform to support more effective 

stakeholder relationships and encourage innovation as we develop our product portfolios 

 Review of more localised membership and community engagement opportunities/programmes in the Club and 

wider centres through the Eudaimonia campaign 

 A full estate refresh including the re-imagination of the Club’s community spaces and iconic swimming pool 

 Achievement of an Ofsted Outstanding grade 

 A comprehensive review of our People Strategy acknowledging that our staff are our enduring advantage 

The first year is characterised by a significant focus on business development and building upon our key 

partnerships; ongoing review of our staffing structures, and investment in IT infrastructure and the remaining estate 

to ensure that our delivery model is agile and scalable. The financial projections forecast a reduced loss of £0.8m in 

2018 and a surplus from existing operations in 2019. Trustees recognise that strategic priorities for the first 2 years 

are ambitious and the pace of change across the organisation will continue to be challenging, however, the charity 

is committed to investing in all of the operations and the charitable work they perform. 

Grants received – the Group and the Association 

Central YMCA has received a number of grants to further its work during the financial period. The Trustees would 

like to thank all those who contributed to the Association’s work. The grants are summarised as follows: 

 

  £'000 Used for 

Fusion Southwark, Fusion Lifestyle and others 18 Exercise and Disability 

London Borough of Merton 10 Community Physical Activity Engagement Programme 

Dame Kelly Holmes Legacy Trust 14 Supporting young people 

Camden PCT 5 HIV/AIDs support 

Islington PCT 5 HIV/AIDs support 

London Borough of Westminster 10 Community Health and Well Being Improvement 

London Borough of Camden 3 Summer courses for young people 

InstructAbility, Aspire 48 InstructAbility Programme 

Help for Heroes 32 InstructAbility Programme 

Total Group and Association 145   

 

Dependence on donations 

The Association is not dependent on donations of services or facilities. 
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Risk management 

The Trustees have a risk management strategy which comprises:  

 a regular review of the risks the Association may face 

 the establishment and monitoring of systems and procedures to mitigate those risks identified in the plan 

 the implementation of procedures designed to minimise any potential impact on the Group should those risks 

materialise. 

The Trustees consider that the main risks to the Group are:  

 the risk of eroding reserves from ongoing operational losses if performance trends are not reversed 

 the extent to which the Group is dependent on government funding of educational courses 

 an external event impacting on the buildings used by the Group 

 policy changes in education resulting in the reduction in recognised vocational qualifications and less focus on 

regulated assessment 

 the effects of increasing competition within all of our operational environments  

 failure to meet Ofsted or Ofqual requirements 

The Board regularly considers risk and continually monitors the agreed actions for risk mitigation. An analysis of the 

causes and consequences, the existing controls and identified future actions to mitigate each risk, is presented to 

the board on a quarterly basis for review. Changes to the risk ratings are monitored; new areas of corporate risk and 

any items being taken off the register are brought to the Board of Trustees’ attention.  

The risk register is updated quarterly in line with the business planning process. The Trustees have overall 

responsibility for ensuring that the Group has appropriate systems of controls, financial and otherwise, to provide 

reasonable assurance that: 

 The Group is operating efficiently and effectively; 

 Its assets are safeguarded against unauthorised use or disposition; 

 Proper records are maintained and financial information used within the charity or for publication is reliable; 

 The Group complies with relevant laws and regulations. 

The Group is exposed to risk through its financial instruments, these instruments primarily being investments, cash 

at bank and trade debtors. Trustees seek to minimise their exposure to these risks through balanced investment 

portfolios managed by reputable investment managers and through the use of banks with good credit ratings. Trade 

debt is comprised in the main of small balances due from individuals or from government. With aged debt over 365 

days fully provided for, the resulting debt is deemed a low exposure to credit risk.  
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Investment powers 

Under the Articles the Association has the power to invest in any way the Trustees wish. Rothschild manages an 

investment portfolio on behalf of the Trustees, and has been asked to invest to provide income to subsidise the 

activities of the Association and also to build up reserves to provide capital funding for improvements to the facilities 

and other projects. Rothschild was set the target of achieving a total return of 3.5% per annum above inflation (CPI) 

over the long term (before taking account of cash distributions to Central YMCA).  

The portfolio as at 31 July 2017 was showing a significant +22.9% yield for the prior 16-month financial period 

(+2.42% 2016). 

The Association has not set any social, environmental or ethical restrictions on the investments other than avoiding 

anything carrying a government health warning, such as tobacco products. The Association’s Investment 

Committee meets regularly with Rothschild to discuss the investment strategy. Details of investments are set out in 

Note 11 of the accounts. 

Reserves policy 

The Trustees have established the level of free reserves (that is, those funds that are freely available) that the 

Association ought to have. Reserves are needed to bridge the gap between carrying out activities and receiving the 

funds for those activities. In particular, the Trustees previously set a policy that free reserves should cover six 

months’ operating expenditure, which equates to approximately £9.5m. This policy is due for review in 2018. 

As at 31st July 2017 the Group’s reserves are as follows:  

Reserve  Current reserves Further information 

Restricted endowment 
reserves  

£716k 
These are funds which are restricted as to their future use and therefore 
are not freely available.  

Designated reserve – Great 
Russell Street Development 
fund  

£4,990k 

Funds have been designated to cover the anticipated cost of repairs / 
refurbishments to the Group’s long leasehold properties. 

The Group is expecting to invest in updating the facilities in the next two 
years and although the exact amount is unknown at present the 
Trustees consider that a reserve of this magnitude will be needed. The 
release of these funds is at the discretion of the Trustees and spend will 
only be approved if the Charity achieves the objectives of 2018 and 
2019. 

Designated reserve – Basil 
Scott fund  

£264k 

The fund is designated to provide educational grants in the name of the 
late Mr Scott. This fund will be integral to a new programme of charitable 
activities to be launched in 2018 centred around the new spaces in the 
Club. 

Funds represented by 
property, plant and equipment   

£17,268k 
The funds invested in tangible fixed assets are not freely available to the 
Group and therefore are excluded from free reserves.  

Free reserves  £5,588k 
The six months’ operating funds target is around £9.5m and so the free 
reserves are currently at 50% of the target.  

Total Group reserves  £28,826k  

 

Virtually all of the free reserves are held in investments (and so also provide income). It is the intention of the 

Trustees that the majority of these investments will be retained on a long-term basis to ensure that the Group can 

continue to provide public benefit at the levels planned. The Trustees will keep their reserve policy under review, 

balancing this against the needs of the Group and opportunities available to it. 

Auditor 

Nexia Smith & Williamson were appointed as auditors in 2015 and have remained for 2017 and it is proposed that 

the Group will review its audit and internal audit requirements in 2018 in consideration of the new simplified 

corporate structure. 
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Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities 

The Trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report (incorporating the Group Strategic Report) and the 

financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under company law 

the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the group and parent Association and of the incoming resources and application of 

resources, including its income and expenditure, of the group for the period. In preparing those financial statements 

the Trustees are required to: 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently 

 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 

 make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent 

 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements 

 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

Association will continue in business. 

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 

Association’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and 

parent Association and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the 

Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and parent Association 

and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

Disclosure of information to auditor  

So far as the Trustees are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the charity’s auditor is unaware. 

The Trustees have taken all the steps they ought to have taken as Trustees to make themselves aware of any 

relevant audit information and to establish that the charity’s auditor is aware of that information.   

 

On behalf of the Board 

P Campbell 

Honorary Treasurer 

 

M Andrews 

Chairman    
      
   

A Henderson    

Company Secretary 

 

Date approved: 29 November 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Registered Office: 

112 Great Russell Street 

London 

WC1B 3NQ 
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members and 

Trustees of Central Young Men’s Christian 

Association 

We have audited the financial statements of Central Young Men’s Christian Association for the period ended 31 July 

2017 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities, the Consolidated and Parent Charitable 

Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 22. The financial 

reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting 

Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 

of the Companies Act 2006, and the charitable company’s trustees, as a body, in accordance with Section 151 of 

the Charities Act 2011 and regulations made under Section 154 of that Act. Our audit work has been undertaken so 

that we might state to the charitable company’s members and trustees those matters we are required to state to 

them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 

assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company’s members as a 

body and the charitable company’s trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have 

formed. 

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditor 

As explained more fully in the Trustees’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 22, the Trustees (who are also 

the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the 

financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. 

We have been appointed as auditor under the Companies Act 2006 and Section 151 of the Charities Act 2011 and 

report to you in accordance with those Acts. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial 

statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 

standards require us to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s (FRC’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the FRC’s website at 

www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate. 

Opinion on financial statements 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and the parent charitable company’s affairs as at 31 July 

2017 and of the group’s incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, 

for the period then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities Act 

2011. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members and Trustees of Central Young Men’s 

Christian Association (continued)  

 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

 the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report (incorporating the Group Strategic Report) for the 

financial period for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with those financial 

statements; and 

 the Trustees’ Annual Report (incorporating the Group Strategic Report) have been prepared in 

accordance with applicable legal requirements. 

 

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of 

the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the Trustees’ Annual Report (incorporating the 

Group Strategic Report). 

 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities Act 

2011 require us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

 the parent charitable company has not kept adequate and sufficient accounting records, or returns adequate for 

our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

 the parent charitable company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 

returns; or 

 certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 

 

 

Jonathan Pryor   

Senior Statutory Auditor, for and on behalf of  

Nexia Smith & Williamson  

Statutory Auditor 

Chartered Accountants 

25 Moorgate  

London  

EC2R 6AY 

  

Nexia Smith & Williamson is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006 
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Consolidated Statement 

of Comprehensive Income 
for the 16 month financial period ended 31 July 2017 

  Note Normal 

Re-
structuring 

costs  Total  Normal 

Re-
Structuring 

costs  Total   

   2017  2017  2017  2016  2016  2016  

      16 months       12 months  

   £’000 £’000  £’000   £’000   £’000   £’000  

               

Turnover 5  20,245   -   20,245   16,546   -   16,546  

Operating expenditure 6  (24,526)  (766)  (25,292)  (19,855)  (705)  (20,560) 

Operating deficit   (4,281)  (766)  (5,047)  (3,309)  (705)  (4,014) 

Income from fixed asset investments 
               

563  - 563 402 - 402 

Gains/(losses) on investments    2,419   -   2,419   (316)  -   (316) 

Deficit for the financial 
period before and after tax    (1,299)  (766)  (2,065)  (3,223)  (705)  (3,928) 

Other comprehensive 
income:        

Revaluation of property 10  43   -   43   1,287   -   1,287  

Total comprehensive 
expenditure for the financial 
period   (1,256)  (766)  (2,022)  (1,936)  (705)  (2,641) 
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Consolidated Statement 

of Financial Activities 
for the 16 month financial period ended 31 July 2017 

  Note  Unrestricted   Restricted   Endowment   Total     

    Funds   Funds   Funds  2017   2016  

          16 months   12 months  

         £’000   £’000   £’000   £’000   £’000  

Income and endowments 
from:            

Donations and legacies   22   -   -   22   6  

Charitable activities   19,338   145   -   19,483   16,010  

Other trading activities   740   -   -   740   530  

Investments   563   -   -   563   402  

Total income 5  20,663   145   -   20,808   16,948  

Expenditure on:       

Raising funds   538   -   -   538   544  

Charitable activities:       

- Charitable operations   23,843   145   -   23,988   19,311  

- Restructuring costs 18  766   -   -   766   705  

Total expenditure on charitable 
activities   24,609   145   -   24,754   20,016  

Total expenditure 6  25,147   145   -   25,292   20,560  

Net gains / (losses) on 
investments   2,419   -   -   2,419   (316) 

Net expenditure    (2,065)  -   -   (2,065)  (3,928) 

Other recognised 
gains/losses:       

Gains on revaluation of fixed 
assets  10  43   -   -   43   1,287  

Net movement in funds   (2,022)  -   -   (2,022)  (2,641) 

Reconciliation of funds       

Fund balances brought forward   30,132   -   716   30,848   33,489  

Fund balances carried forward  
15, 16 & 

17  28,110   -   716   28,826   30,848  

 

Notes 5 and 6 to the accounts show full analysis of comparative income and expenditure by the charitable activities. 

All items not shown in notes 5 and 6, being net gains and losses on investments and the gain on revaluation of fixed 

assets, are unrestricted for both financial periods.  
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 
Company number: 119249  

as at 31 July 2017 

         

                           31 July                         31 March  

     2017      2016 

    Note £’000   £’000 

Fixed assets          

Intangible - IT Software   10  92    45 

Plant, property and equipment   10  17,176     17,259  

Investments   11a  13,726     13,708  

Total fixed assets     30,994     31,012  

Current assets:        

Inventory   12  2     4  

Debtors   13  1,543     2,316  

Cash at bank and in hand     897     1,154  

Total current assets     2,442     3,474  

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 14 (4,278)                     (3,303) 

Net current (liabilities) / assets      (1,836)    171  

Total assets less current liabilities      29,158     31,183  

Provisions for liabilities   14  (332)    (335) 

Total net assets     28,826     30,848  

         

The funds of the charity:        

Endowment funds   17  716     716  

Restricted income funds   17  -     -  

Total restricted funds     716     716  

Unrestricted fund - general   15  4,777     8,369  

Unrestricted fund - designated reserves   16  5,254     4,884  

Revaluation reserves   15  18,079     16,879  

Total unrestricted funds     28,110     30,132  

Total charity funds     28,826     30,848  

 

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 29 November 2017 

and were signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

 

M Andrews        P Campbell 

Chair        Treasurer 
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Parent Association Balance Sheet 
Company number: 119249  

as at 31 July 2017 

        

                           31 July                         31 March  

     2017  2016 

    Note £’000  £’000 

Fixed assets       

Intangible - IT Software  10 92  45 

Plant, property and equipment   10 17,176  17,259 

Investments   11a 13,726  13,708 

Investment in subsidiary   11b -  - 

Total fixed assets    30,994  31,012 

Current assets:       

Debtors   13 1,475  2,280 

Cash at bank and in hand    887  1,144 

Total current assets    2,362  3,424 

Liabilities:       

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 14 (4,249)  (3,303) 

Net current (liabilities) / assets     (1,887)  121 

Total assets less current liabilities     29,107  31,133 

Creditors: Amounts falling due after one year     

Provisions for liabilities   14 (332)  (335) 

Total net assets    28,775  30,798 

        

The funds of the charity:       

Endowment funds   17 716  716 

Restricted income funds   17 -  - 

Total restricted funds    716  716 

Unrestricted fund - general   15 4,727  8,319 

Unrestricted fund - designated reserves   16 5,254  4,884 

Revaluation reserves   15 18,078  16,879 

Total unrestricted funds    28,059  30,082 

Total charity funds    28,775  30,798 

 

Following the merger of London Central YMCA and YMCA Training with Central YMCA, the Parent Association 

Balance Sheet includes the assets and liabilities of those companies. The Association’s deficit for the financial 

period was £2,022k (£2,641k 2016). 

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on 29 November 2017 

and were signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

 

 

M Andrews       P Campbell 

Chair        Treasurer 
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Consolidated statement of cash flows 
for the financial period ended 31 July 2017 

           

                             2017                            2016  

      Note  16 months     12 months  

Cash flows from operating activities:             

Net cash used in operating activities      19  (4,721)    (2,142)  

Cash flows from investing activities:           

Dividends, interest and rents from investments                              563                              402  

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment                                -    20    

Purchase of property, plant and equipment      (721)   (216)  

Proceeds from sale of investments        7,997                         3,338  

Purchase of investments        (5,596)  (2,107)  

Net cash provided by investing activities        2,243                          1,437  

             

Cash flow from financing activities     

Receipt of endowment fund     716  - 

Proceeds of new loan    1,505  - 

Net cash inflow from  financing activities        2,221   - 

    

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period  (257)    (705)  

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period                      1,154                           1,859  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period  897                           1,154  

 

Significant non-cash transactions were the revaluations of fixed assets and investments.  
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Notes to the accounts 

1 General Information 

The Central Young Men’s Christian Association and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) operate a number of 

charitable activities throughout the UK. The Group uses a number of brand names for its services, including YMCA 

Awards, YMCA Club, YMCA Training, YMCAfit and OneKX. 

The Central Young Men’s Christian Association (“the Association”) is a registered charity and a company limited by 

guarantee. It is registered in England, its registered office is 112 Great Russell Street, London, WC1B 3NQ and its 

registered number is 119249. Full Members are a group of 18 (2016 – 18) individuals who have affirmed their 

commitment to the Association’s corporate aim and are the equivalent of the shareholders of a commercial 

company. They are elected by the Board of Trustees. The Full Members of the Association are each liable to 

contribute 37 pence towards the liabilities of the Association in the event of liquidation but cannot receive any 

distribution of any kind as a result of their membership. 

2 Statement of Compliance 

The group and individual financial statements of the Central Young Men’s Christian Association have been prepared 

in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, ‘‘The 

Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland’’ (‘‘FRS 102’’), the 

Companies Act 2006, and the “Statement of Recommended Practice” (SORP 2015) applicable to charities 

preparing their accounts in accordance with FRS102. The Group financial statements are also prepared in 

accordance with the Charities Act 2011. 

The Group is a public entity group and the Association is a public benefit entity, as defined by FRS102. 

3 Accounting policies  

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated and separate financial statements 

are set out below.  

The accounting policies have been applied consistently for each year presented, saved as detailed below. 

In previous financial statements computer software was reported as part of property, plant and equipment; in these 

financial statements the software is reported as an intangible asset. This is simply a change in presentation which 

has no impact on the reported results or net assets. 

 (a) Basis of preparation 

These consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical 

cost convention, as modified by the recognition of long leasehold properties and certain financial assets measured 

at fair value. 

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 

management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group and Company accounting policies. The 

areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are 

significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4. 

The Association has taken advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act from disclosing its 

individual statement of comprehensive income. 

  



    THE CENTRAL YOUNG MEN’S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION and subsidiary undertakings 31 

 Trustees’ Annual Report (incorporating the Group Strategic Report) and consolidated financial statements  

 
 

 

ymca.co.uk 

ESTABLISHED 1844 

(b) Going Concern 

The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through cash generated by charitable and trading 

operations, from returns from investments and from planned withdrawals from the investment portfolio. The current 

economic conditions continue to create uncertainty over the income and investment returns for the foreseeable 

future. Whilst the return on investments were better than expected in 2017 this cannot be relied on for future years 

and the forecasts do not include further gains from those assets. A strong focus on new partnerships and 

fundraising from non-governmental sources, to balance the Charity’s income portfolio and mitigate risk, is central to 

the short term strategic priorities.  

A particular challenge to the Charity’s educational transformation plans has been the introduction of the 

Apprenticeship Levy system in May 2017 which resulted in significant reductions in Apprenticeship starts over the 

2017 summer period whilst employers awaited the results of the general election and possible further policy change 

before creating their Levy/Apprenticeship strategies. This recruitment impact was felt across the market. 

Restructuring and reorganisation activity in period and the development of clearer lines of accountability has also 

provided greater visibility of pockets of underperformance and the ability to respond faster to address issues as they 

arise.  

The Group’s forecasts and projections for 2018 and 2019, taking into account possible changes in income and 

investments, show that the work done over the last 4 years is starting to bear fruit. Although operational losses for 

the period are significant, demonstrable cost performance improvements can be seen in the final quarter of the 

financial period. With a full year of cost reduction, greater contributions are expected from all charitable trading 

activities. 

Although still forecasting a deficit budget in 2018 this is significantly lower than in 2016 and 2017 and the group 

should be able to operate within the level of its current cash resources for the next financial year and is expected to 

breakeven in 2019. After making enquiries, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Group has 

adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Group therefore continues 

to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements. 

(c) Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102 

FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity certain disclosure exemptions. The Association has taken advantage of the 

following exemptions: 

(i) from preparing a statement of cash flows, on the basis that it is a qualifying entity and the consolidated 

statement of cash flows, included in these financial statements, includes the Association’s cash flows; 

(ii) from disclosing the Association key management personnel compensation. 

(d) Basis of consolidation 

The Group consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Association and all of its 

subsidiary undertakings made up to 31 July. 

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies 

of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 

Intra group business transfers into the Association are treated as group reconstructions and are accounted for using 

merger accounting. Incoming assets and liabilities are recognized at their original book values, the Association’s 

income and expenditure reflects the activities of the merged business for the whole of the year and comparatives 

have been restated to reflect the position of the businesses as though they had been merged since inception. 
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(e) Foreign currency 

The Group and Association’s functional and presentation currency is the pound sterling. 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rates at the dates 

of the transactions. At each period end, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. All 

exchange differences are dealt with in the statement of financial activities.  

(f) Revenue recognition 

Incoming resources from charitable activities represent the amounts derived (excluding value added tax) from the 

provision of goods and services to third-party customers during the financial period. The Group recognises revenue 

according to the following principles: 

 Services are gym memberships, classes, training, education – where income is recognised as the services are 

provided (i.e. when a training course has started). Income in advance is deferred and income in arrears is 

accrued. The exception is YMCA Training’s ESFA Apprenticeship contract where income is recognised over the 

duration of the learning. However, whilst the funding provides for an additional lump sum on achievement, this 

is only recognised at the student’s completion date. ESFA 16-18 Study Programme and Traineeship funding is 

recognised as income over the duration of each learner’s programme without a lump sum at the end.  

 Income of the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered. 

 Non-exchange transactions (grants, donations, bequests) are recognised in the SOFA when conditions for their 

receipt have been complied with, receipt is probable and the amount known. Any income from performance 

related grants is carried forward as part of deferred income to the extent that the related services have not been 

performed. Grants which fund charitable activities are classified as income from charitable activities.  

 Investment income comprises interest receivable on short-term deposits as well as amounts received on 

investments and is recognised when the Group is entitled to the income. 

 

(g) Restructuring costs 

The Group classifies certain charges relating to significant reductions in staffing, center closures and associated 

costs that have a material impact on the Group’s financial results as ‘restructuring costs’. These are disclosed 

separately to provide further understanding of the financial performance of the Group. 

(h) Employee benefits 

The Group provides a range of benefits to employees, including paid holiday arrangements and defined contribution 

pension plans. 

Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, redundancy and other payments 

to staff leaving the Group, are recognised as an expense in the period in which the service is received. 

The Group operates two defined contribution plans for its employees where the Group pays fixed contributions 

into a separate entity with no further payment obligations. The contributions are recognised as an expense 

when they are due. Amounts not paid are shown in accruals in the balance sheet. The assets of the plans are 

held separately from the Group in independently administered funds. 

 

i) Taxation 

As a registered charity, the Association is able to claim certain reliefs from corporation tax on its income. Where 

these reliefs apply, no taxation is provided. 

All irrecoverable VAT is treated as part of the cost of the item to which it relates. 
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(j) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or, in the case of long leasehold property, fair value. Cost includes 

the original purchase price and costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its 

intended use. 

No land value is attributed to long leases as other parties have rights over the site on which the buildings are 

constructed.  

Depreciation is calculated, using the straight-line method, to allocate the depreciable amount to the assets’ residual 

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

Fixtures, fittings and computer equipment  -  5% to 33% 

Long leasehold buildings   -  80 years 

Short leasehold buildings   -  20 years 

 

Running repairs and minor renewals of buildings and plant are written off as incurred. 

Individual long leasehold properties are held at their estimated fair value. Updated valuations are obtained when 

either there is evidence that the previous valuations do not reflect the current values of the relevant properties or 

every three years. The surplus or deficit on depreciated historic cost being transferred to the revaluation reserve, 

except that a deficit which is in excess of any previously recognised surplus over depreciated cost relating to the 

same property, or the reversal of such a deficit, is charged (or credited) to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

A deficit which represents a clear consumption of economic benefits is charged to Statement of Comprehensive 

Income regardless of any such previous surplus. 

Where there are indications that the residual value or useful life of an asset has changed, the residual value, useful 

life or depreciation rate are amended respectively to reflect the new circumstances. The assets are reviewed for 

impairment if these factors indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired. Impairment losses are recognised in 

the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

If an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 

estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the revised carrying amount does not exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment loss being recognised in 

prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Assets are de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected. On disposal, the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in Statement of 

Comprehensive Income and included in ‘Other operating (losses)/gains’. 

(k) Intangible assets 

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Association controls the asset, it is probable that future 

economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Association and the cost of the asset can be reliably 

measured 

Computer software purchased from third parties are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and 

bring into use the specific software. 

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives from the 

date the software is available for use. The estimated useful lives of computer software is 3 to 5 years. 
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(l) Investments 

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Other investments, which 

comprise listed investments held by the Group’s investment managers, are stated at their fair value, being the 

closing market value of the investments as at the period end. Changes in the value of the investments and gains 

and losses on disposals are recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income. Any accumulated investment 

gains are recognised as a revaluation reserve. 

(m) Leased assets 

Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as 

finance leases. The Group and Association have no leases classified as finance leases. 

Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Payments 

under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the 

period of the lease. 

(n) Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to sell. Inventories are recognised 

as an expense in the period in which the related income is recognised. 

(o) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and the investment managers, 

and other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of 3 months or less.  

Currently all cash and cash equivalents for the Group and Association are in the form of cash at bank with no time 

limit or penalties applicable for the withdrawal of funds. 

(p) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount of the obligation 

can be estimated reliably. 

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 

determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an 

outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations might be small. 

Provisions for leased property dilapidations relate to the estimate cost of making good the dilapidations as at the 

balance sheet date, where the Group has such an obligation as a result of the tenancy agreements or property law. 

The provision is estimated based on current rectification costs. 

(q) Financial instruments 

The Group has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.  

Basic financial assets, including investments, trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances are initially 

recognised at transaction price. Investments are subsequently measured at fair value, concessionary loans are not 

subsequently re-measured and other financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

Other than loans, basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables are initially recognised at transaction 

price and subsequently at amortised cost. Loans are recognised at the present value of future cash flows stated 

discounted at the market rate of interest. 

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the associated cash flows are settled or expire or 

when the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to a third party. Financial liabilities are derecognised when 

the liability is discharged, cancelled or expire 
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(r) Apportionment of expenses 

Charitable expenses are allocated directly against the operation to which they relate and represent the cost of 

running the programme.  

Governance costs include audit, company secretarial and strategic management costs. Support costs, which 

include Governance costs, have been allocated using a range of calculation and allocation methods most 

appropriate to the type of expenditure in question. 

Expense Type Apportionment method 

HR costs; staff related expenditure; IT costs Staff numbers  

Facilities costs; Utilities and insurance Area occupied 

Marketing; Finance costs; and central staff costs Turnover by operations 

 

(s) Funds 

Funds held by the Association are either: 

 unrestricted general funds – these are funds which can be used in accordance with the charitable objects at the 

discretion of the Trustees 

 designated funds – these are funds set aside by the Trustees out of unrestricted general funds for specific 

future purposes or projects  

 restricted funds – these are funds that can only be used for particular restricted purposes within the objects of 

the Association. Restrictions arise when specified by the donor or when funds are raised for particular restricted 

purposes. 

 Endowment fund-   these are funds are gifts of endowments where the Trustees have the power to utilise in line 

with the objects of the Association. 

Further explanation of the nature and purposes of each fund is included in Notes 16 and 17. 

4 Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances 

(a) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies 

(i) Revenue recognition of course income 

The Group recognises short-term fitness training courses at the time the course commences. Whilst some courses 

may span beyond the financial year-end, the Group does not consider the impact would make a material difference 

to the reported income and it is not adjusted. 

Income from Apprenticeship learners is recognised over the duration of their programme. However, whilst the 

funding provides for an additional lump sum on achievement, this is only recognised at the student’s achievement 

date. Study Programme and Traineeship funding is recognised over the duration of the learning programme with no 

lump sum payments for achievement. 

 (ii) Future income projections/going concern assessment 

Trustees scrutinised the short-term forecasts for 2018 and longer-term projections for the group to July 2019.  
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Having already carried out 2 years of extensive review of the Group’s cost base and organisational structure; the 

charity is confident that it now has greater visibility of its activity for forecasting, reporting and ultimately 

management decision making purposes.  

Although projecting income has been difficult during a period of significant market and policy change, the 

projections remain the main driver of the Group’s going concern assessment, with these income projections aligned 

to agreed strategic priorities and clear lines of accountability. 

Income projections within our education training provisions (YMCA Training and YMCAfit) are based on an 

understanding of historical learner recruitment trends and are within the parameters of confirmed funding contracts 

(e.g. Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)) where applicable.  

A prudent forecast for Apprenticeship income next year reflects the slow adoption of the Government’s 

apprenticeship reforms and Apprenticeship Levy across the country. The Apprenticeship delivery model aims to 

become more flexible and scalable in 2018 to ensure that it can respond to market demand changes rapidly with 

little impact to the charity’s bottom line if market demand in a region or sector drops.  

The Charity has also opted to enter into strategic relationships for 2018 with subcontractors to deliver up to half of 

the total Study Programme contract, securing contribution whilst it continues the final phase of its centre 

restructuring plans. 

Historical trends and market analysis drive projections of fitness memberships and usage of the Club and OneKX. 

Historical trends and market analysis also drive income projections for YMCA Awards however, in a declining and 

consolidating market, it is recognised that new business in the form of online content and eLearning will require 

further business development focus to diversify our income opportunities.  

The assessment made at the June Trustee budget review meeting is still deemed applicable at the date of signing 

the accounts. The charity will continue to review its costs and activities in line with its charitable objects and 

Trustees remain confident that the Group remains a going concern.  
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(b) Key accounting estimates and assumptions 

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by 

definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of 

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 

addressed b. 

(i) Provisions for property dilapidations 

The current provision is based on surveys which were carried out in 2015 and 2016 by external advisors. For each 

surveyed property, the potential required works were identified based on the lease agreements, considering the 

term of the lease remaining together with the current estimated cost of that work. The provisions for likely 

dilapidations on property were estimated based on a current estimate of dilapidation cost per square foot advised.  

Full provision was made for the estimated dilapidation cost. On a £ per square foot basis, these costs are also in 

line with actual settlements made to landlords for closed centres. 

(ii) Fair value of long Leasehold properties 

Long leasehold properties are valued at Fair Value based on professional advice.  

There was no change to the basis of valuation in regard to the Lesley Mowbray Suite office space in the period; 

general market changes resulted in an increase of £409k. 

As part of its preparation for the new phase of refurbishment works on the existing building at Great Russell Street, 

the Association conducted some investigations into the condition of parts of the mechanical and electrical 

equipment in the building. This investigation identified that some of that equipment was in less condition that had 

been assumed in the 2016 desktop valuation. After adjusting for depreciation, the net impact on the property value 

was a devaluation of £336k. 

The M&E equipment servicing the areas being refurbished has been written off as a result of the project; however, 

these building components were assumed to be fully depreciated as they were installed in the 1970s. The building 

works are expected to increase the value of the property on completion. 

5 Analysis of incoming resources 

Analysis of incoming resources 2017 

   Unrestricted   Restricted   Endowment   Total  

   Funds   Funds   Funds  2017  

         16 months  

        £’000   £’000   £’000   £’000  

Charitable activities:         

Club fitness facilities and associated activities  4,074   37   -   4,111  

YMCAfit training courses  4,291   108   -   4,399  

YMCA Training  8,690   -   -   8,690  

YMCA Awards  2,267   -   -   2,267  

One KX  16   -   -   16  

   19,338   145   -   19,483  

Voluntary income – donations   22   -   -   22  

Commercial trading income  740   -   -   740  

Incoming resources before investment income  20,100   145   -   20,245  

Investment income  563   -   -   563  

Total  20,663   145   -   20,808  
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Analysis of incoming resources 2016 

  Unrestricted   Restricted   Endowment   Total  

   Funds   Funds   Funds                        2016  

         12 months  

        £’000   £’000   £’000   £’000  

Charitable activities:         

Club fitness facilities and associated activities          2,987  47                                -                        3,034  

YMCAfit training courses          3,186  157                                -                        3,343  

YMCA Training          7,606                               -                                  -                        7,606  

YMCA Awards          1,877                               -                                  -                        1,877  

One KX               150                               -                                  -                             150  

        15,806  
                         

204  -                   16,010  

Voluntary income – donations  
                    

6  
                              

-                                  -    

                               
6  

Commercial trading income               530  
                              

-                                  -                             530  

Incoming resources before investment 
income       16,342  

                         
204  -                   16,546  

Investment income               402  
                              

-                                  -                             402  

Total       16,744  
                         

204  
                                

-                   16,948  

 

All income from charitable activities has been generated in the United Kingdom apart from an amount of £102,814 

(2016: £46,715) which was earned from 9 (2016: 10) other countries.  

Of the above total income £63k (£114k 2016) was derived from the sale of goods, £563k (£402k 2016) from 

investment income, £145k (£204k 2016) from grants and the balance of £20,037k (£16,228k 2016) was derived 

from provision of services. 

6 Analysis of total resources expended    

Analysis of total resources expended 2017 

    Direct    Apportioned Support   Total  

    Costs   Costs                        2017  

        16 months  

  Note       £’000   £’000   £’000  

Charitable activities:        

YMCA Club   3,093   1,630   4,723  

YMCAfit training courses   3,303   1,734   5,037  

YMCA Training   7,412   3,669   11,081  

YMCA Awards   1,916   1,131   3,047  

One KX   107   -   107  

Restructuring costs 18  695   64   759  

    16,526   8,228   24,754  

Other:     

Commercial trading   364   43   407  

Investment costs   98   33   131  

Total   16,988   8,304   25,292  
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Analysis of total resources expended 2016 

      Apportioned    

    Direct    Support   Total  

    Costs   Costs                        2016  

        12 months  

  Note       £’000   £’000   £’000  

Charitable activities:        

YMCA Club                      2,610                           849                      3,459  

YMCAfit training courses                      2,260                      1,071                      3,331  

YMCA Training                      7,671                      2,282                      9,953  

YMCA Awards                      1,857                           622                      2,479  

One KX                              89                                  -                              89  

Restructuring costs 18                          705                                  -                           705  

                    15,192                      4,824                   20,016  

Other:     

Commercial trading                           404                              39                           443  

Investment costs                              82                              19                           101  

Total                   15,678                      4,882                   20,560  

 

Support costs are made up as follows: 

      

                          2017                        2016  

     16 months   12 months  

    £’000 £’000 

IT costs    1,208                           750  

Property costs    108                           107  

Finance department costs    786                           479  

HR costs    926                           680  

Communication and marketing costs    672                           306  

Management costs    546                           327  

Maintenance department costs    396                           279  

Insurance    176                           156  

Affiliation fee YMCA England    69                              24  

Operations        1,224                           657  

Development/fundraising                           296                           282  

Sundry costs/other          -                                44  

Quality    382                                -    

National administration    1,321                           616  

Governance costs    194                           175  

     8,304                      4,882  

 

Significant organisational change in the period has seen the centralisation of all IT, Marketing and HR spend; the 

costs of the now centralised services are included within the support costs for 2017, but for 2016, the costs are 

included within direct costs. The centralisation did not result in an increase in overall expenditure. Support costs 

comprise Central Support Services costs of £5,897k, plus support costs incurred by operational departments.  

 

Governance costs are made up as follows:  

       

                          2017                        2016  

     16 months   12 months  

    £’000 £’000 

Auditor’s remuneration (excluding irrecoverable VAT)                             43                              48  

Irrecoverable VAT on auditor’s remuneration                                8                                 8  

Company secretarial costs                               60                              54  

Share of management time on strategic matters                             83                              65  

                             194                           175  

 

The basis of apportionment is set out in the accounting policies. 
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7 Net outgoing resources for the financial period 

      

                          2017                        2016  

     16 months   12 months  

Net outgoing resources for the financial   £’000 £’000 

period is stated after charging/(crediting)       

        

Bad debt expenses                               129                              18  

Operating lease payments:       

- Property rentals                            620                           747  

- Motor vehicles                               7                              31  

Other services provided by the group auditor   

- Tax Compliance 2 2 

- Tax advice 7 - 

- Other audit related services 4 4 

- Other advice 9 - 

Depreciation – owned assets                            801                           649  

 

8 Remuneration of Trustees 

The Trustees did not receive any emoluments during the period (2016: £nil) for services as Trustees of the 

Association. A total of £2,628 (2016: £1,898) was reimbursed to eight (2016: six) Trustees during the period in 

respect of reimbursement of travel costs. Trustee indemnity insurance was purchased during the period at a cost of 

£11,108 (2016: £8,322). 

9 Staff numbers and costs 

The average number of persons employed by the group during the financial period, analysed by category: 

                           Number of Employees 

            2017                        2016  

      

Operations               329                           380  

Management and administration 44                              37  

                373                           417  

 

As part of the restructuring programme, 13 roles were recognised as being management and administration 

roles; in the prior year, these were recognised as operations roles. 

 

In addition to the above staff, circa 200 unpaid volunteers assist in the provision of Club services to those in need. 

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows: 

      

                          2017                        2016  

     16 months   12 months  

    £’000 £’000 

Wages and salaries    11,672                     9,773  

Redundancy costs                            365                           703  

Social security costs   1,093                          924  

Other pension costs - Defined contribution scheme 297                          244  

    13,427                  11,644  

 

 

The total redundancy payments for 2017 of £365k (£703k 2016) were funded from accumulated reserves.  
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The emoluments of the employees earning over £60,000 over the financial period fell into the following bands: 

     Number of Employees 

Total value paid in the financial period: 

Band 

2017 

16 months 

           2017 

Final 12 months of 2017  

                      2016 

12 months  

£60,001 – £70,000 - 2 3 

£70,001 – £80,000 3 2 1 

£80,001 – £90,000 1 2 3 

£90,001 – £100,000 3 1 1 

£100,001 – £110,000 1 1 1 

£110,001 – £120,000 1 - 1 

£120,001 – £130,000 1 1 - 

£130,001 – £140,000 1 - - 

£160,001 – £170,000 1 - - 

    

Pension costs for these higher paid employees, for the 16-month financial period, amounted to £59,271 (£65,985 

2016, 12 months). 

Key management compensation 

Key management personnel comprise of members of the senior management of the Group. The compensation paid 

or payable to key management for employee services for the 16-month period with an overlap of Group Finance 

Directors was £415,303 (£290,456 2016, 12 months). This includes salary, pension contributions, National 

Insurance and employee benefits. 

10 Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets 

For the group and association: 

 

Intangible 
Assets 

 
Property, plant and equipment 

  

  
IT Software  

 
 Long leasehold 

property Great 
Russell St  

 Short 
leasehold 

property 
Cromer Street  

 Fixtures, 
Fittings and 
Equipment  

 Total  

       £’000         £’000   £’000   £’000   £’000  

Cost or valuation:                                            

At 31 March 2016  124   16,274   1,725   4,427   22,426  

Transfer between categories  11   - -  (11)  (11)  

Additions  77    596   -   49   645  

Disposals  -    -   -   (1,317)   (1,317)  

Revaluations  -    (499)  -   -   (499) 

At 31 July 2017  212   16,371   1,725   3,148   21,244  

             

Depreciation:                                                                       

At 31 March 2016   79    -   906   4,261   5,167  

Transfer between categories  3      (3)  (3)  

Charge for the period   38    555   116   92   763  

Disposals  -    -   -   (1,317)  (1,317)  

Revaluations  -    (542)  -   -   (542) 

At 31 July 2017  120    13   1,022   3,033   4,068 

             

Net book value:                                                                      

At 31 July 2017  92   16,358   703   115   17,176  

       

At 31 March 2016   45    16,274   819   166   17,259  
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Fully depreciated assets within YMCA Training were disposed of at nil value during the period prior to merger with 

Central YMCA. Software development costs have been re-classified to provide a better reflection of the assets held 

by the Charity. 

Depreciation charged on the property at Great Russell Street, London WC1 is charged over 40 years from the date 

of valuation to reflect the remaining estimated useful life of the facility. 

Long leasehold properties at Fair Value: 

       

                          2017                        2016  

     £’000   £’000  

Great Russell Street buildings       

At period end open market value                    16,358                   16,274  

Aggregate depreciation thereon                                   -  -  

Net book value                    16,358                   16,274  

Historical cost of revalued assets                       5,763                      5,763  

Aggregate depreciation based on historical cost                   (4,527)                   (4,056) 

Historical cost net book value                       1,236                      1,707  

 

The interests in the property at Great Russell Street, London WC1 were revalued as at 31 July 2017. These 

valuations were produced by Montagu Evans LLP, an independent external firm of chartered surveyors in 

accordance with the RICS Valuation Standards – (January 2014) published by the Royal Institute of Chartered 

Surveyors on the basis of Fair Value as defined by FRS102.  

11 Fixed Asset Investments – Group and Association 

a) External investments (Group and Association) 

  31 July 31 March 

                         2017                        2016  

     £’000   £’000  

Fair value at 1st Day of Opening Period                     13,708                   15,221  

Purchases at cost                       5,596                     4,260  

Sale proceeds   (7,997)  (5,509)  

Realised gain on investments sold   2,546                          859  

Subtotal                    13,853                   14,831  

Unrealised (loss)/gain on revaluation              (127)  (1,123)  

Fair value                    13,726                   13,708  

 

The investments were allocated as follows: 

       at 31 July 2017     at 31 March 2016   

     At cost  Market Value  At cost   Market Value  

    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Fixed Income     2,688   2,701                      1,834                         1,853  

Equities     7,090   9,581  7,589  9,311  

Property Funds     965   1,444                      1,923                         2,544  

 Investments      10,743   13,726                   11,346                      13,708  

 Liquid Funds     272   294  (19)  (68)  

 Total      11,015   14,020  11,327  13,640  

 

Liquid funds are included within cash at bank and in hand in the balance sheet. The investments are valued based 

on quoted prices. The investments are valued based on quoted prices. The above investments represent the totality 

of the financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss.  
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b) Internal investments (Association) 

As per the governance structure outlined the Association has five subsidiary undertakings, all of which are either 

100% owned or companies limited by guarantee where the Association is the sole member and are registered in 

England and Wales. The merger date was 31st July 2017 and was accounted for using merger accounting.  

In December 2016 the Trustees agreed to the Transfer of all Assets and Liabilities from YMCA Training and London 

Central YMCA into Central YMCA to complete the formal merger of the Charities. On Transfer of Assets at 31st July 

2017 a few remaining income contracts for YMCA Training including key ESFA contracts remained pending 

novation in 2018, however, all staff and assets have transferred successfully to the parent charity. Central YMCA 

will fully support and continue to deliver these contracts on behalf of YMCA Training whilst these contracts are 

successfully novated. The YMCA Training brand remains post-merger and will continue to trade as a discrete 

operation within the wider Charity structure. 

c) Subsidiary company results and net assets 

Subsidiary company results and net assets 2017 

  London Central 
YMCA Ltd 

YMCA 

Training 

Central 
YMCA 

Trading Ltd 

Y Hotel Ltd YMCA Fitness 
Recruitment 

Ltd 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Summary income and expenditure 
accounts for the financial period to 31 
July 2017        

Income   4,396   10,183   723   -     -    

Expenditure – recurring  (4,599)  (11,312)  (567)   -     -    

Restructuring costs   -    (689)    -     -    

Gift aid donation to the Association   -     -    (156)   -     -    

Net surplus / (deficit) for the financial period  (203)  (1,818)   -     -     -    

       

Retained funds / (deficit) as at 31 July 2017  -   -     50    (1)   -    

 

      

  London Central 
YMCA Ltd 

YMCA 
Training 

Central YMCA 
Trading Ltd 

Y Hotel Ltd YMCA Fitness 
Recruitment 

Ltd 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Summary balance sheet      

Fixed Assets  -   -   -   -   -  

Current Assets -    -   171   -   -  

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one 
year  -  -  (121)   (1)  -  

Net Current Assets  -   -  50   (1)  -  

Creditors: Amounts falling due after one year  -   -   -   -   -  

Provisions for liabilities  -   -  -   -   -  

Total net assets as at 31 July 2017  -   -  50   (1)  -  
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Subsidiary company results and net assets 2016 

  London Central 
YMCA Ltd 

YMCA 
Training 

Central YMCA 
Trading Ltd 

Y Hotel Ltd YMCA Fitness 
Recruitment 

Ltd 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Summary income and expenditure 
accounts – year ended 31 March 2016       

Income           3,342  13,777  496  -    -    

Expenditure – recurring  (3,114)  (9,768)  (369)  -    -    

Restructuring costs                     -    (705)    -    -    

Gift aid donation to the Association                     -    -    (127)  -    -    

Net surplus /(deficit) for the year                228  3,304  -    -    -    

Retained funds / (deficit) as at 31 March 
2016                533  (939)  50  (1)  -    

 

      

  

London Central 
YMCA Ltd 

YMCA 
Training 

Central YMCA 
Trading Ltd 

Y Hotel Ltd YMCA Fitness 
Recruitment 

Ltd 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Summary balance sheet      

Fixed Assets                     0  54  -  -  -  

Current Assets          1,221  1,400  50  -  -  

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one 
year 

            (689)  (2,057) -   (1) -  

Net Current Assets               533   (657) 50   (1) -  

Creditors: Amounts falling due after one year                      -  -  -  -  -  

Provisions for liabilities                      -   (336) -  -  -  

Total net assets as at 31 March 2016                533   (939) 50   (1) -  

 

Of the YMCA Training income shown in 2016 £5.2m relates to the grant received from the Association. Both Y Hotel 

Ltd and YMCA Fitness Recruitment Ltd were dormant in the two financial periods to 31 July 2017.  

12 Inventory 

   Group     Association  

 31 July 31 March  31 July 31 March 

  2017  2016    2017  2016  

   £’000  £’000     £’000  £’000  

            

Items for resale                     2  4                                  -    -    

 

There is no significant difference between the replacement cost of the inventory and its carrying amount. 

13 Debtors 

   Group     Association  

 31 July 31 March  31 July 31 March 

  2017  2016    2017  2016  

   £’000  £’000     £’000  £’000  

Amounts due within one year           

Trade debtors  878  1,088     810  1,083  

Other debtors  153  135     153  135  

Prepayments and accrued income  512  1,093     512  1,062  

   1,543  2,316     1,475  2,280  

  

The Group and Association trade debtors are stated after provisions for impairment of £409k (2016: £214k).  
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14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

   Group     Association  

 31 July 31 March  31 July 31 March 

  2017  2016    2017  2016  

   £’000   £’000     £’000   £’000  

Trade creditors     410                           675     301                           675  

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings  -                                -       94                           -  

Income tax, social security and VAT  127                           270     129                           270  

Accruals  760                           659    744                            659  

Provisions (see below)  71                           247     71                                  247    

Deferred income  1,405                      1,452     1,405                           1,452  

Short term borrowings  1,505  -  1,505 - 

   4,278                      3,303    4,249                      3,303  

 

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are 

repayable on demand. 

Provisions relate to centre dilapidations costs that are expected to materialise in the next 12 months. The amounts 

will be dependent on individual property arrangements with landlords. 

There is currently a short term borrowing arrangement of £1.5m (and £5k accrued interest) with Rothschild which is 

secured by the investment portfolio. 

Deferred income analysis 

     Group       Association    

 31 March  31 July 31 March  31 July 

  2016  Change 2017  2016  Change 2017  

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Courses to be run after July 2017  546  (67)   479   546     (67)     479    

Health and fitness membership fees  150  (58)   92   150  (58)   92  

YMCA Training  756  (151)   605   756     (151)     605    

   1,452  (276)   1,176   1,452  (276)   1,176 

 

     

    Group     Association  

 31 July 31 March  31 July 31 March  

  2017  2016    2017  2016   

   £’000   £’000     £’000  £’000   

Deferred income brought forward  1,452   1,331    1,452   1,331   

Utilised in the financial period (1,452)  (1,252)   (1,452)  (1,252)   

Arising in the financial period  1,176   1,373    1,176   1,373   

Deferred income carried forward  1,176   1,452    1,176   1,452   

  

 

The above income arises from the provision of services and has been deferred as the related services hadn’t been 

provided as at the period end. 
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Provisions for leased property dilapidations 

   Group     Association   

 31 July 31 March  31 July 31 March  

  2017  2016    2017  2016   

  £’000  £’000     £’000  £’000   

Expected to be utilised:             

- within one year       

Provision brought forward 247 475  247 475  

Utilised in year (176) (359)  (176) (359)  

Arising in year - 131  - 131  

Provision carried forward 71 247  71 247  

- after more than one year        

Provision brought forward 335 272  335 272  

Utilised in year (11) (100)  (11) (100)  

Arising in year 8 163  8 163  

Provision carried forward 332 335  332 335  

 

Total provision carried forward 

 

403 

 

582 

  

403 

 

582 

 

 

The provision for leased property dilapidations relates to the estimated liability inherent in the YMCA Training 

centres. The provisions are expected to crystallise when the properties are vacated; the cost of the dilapidations will 

be dependent on the outcome of negotiations with the landlord as to the extent of the required work and 

construction costs at the time the liability arises. 

15 Analysis of total funds 

Analysis of total funds – Group 2017 

    Revaluation       

  General Property Investment Total Designated Endowment Total 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

At 31 March 2016   8,369   14,566   2,313   16,879   4,884   716   30,848  

Net income / expenditure (2,065)   -     -     -     -     -    (2,065)  

Other comprehensive income  -     43   -     43   -     -     43  

Total comprehensive income (2,065)   43   -     43   -     -    (2,022)  

Transfer between funds        

- revaluation of investments (670)   -     670   670   -     -     -    

-depreciation of revalued 
amount (487)   487   -     487   -     -     -    

-designation of funds (370)   -     -     -     370   -     -    

At 31 July 2017  4,777   15,096   2,983   18,079   5,254   716   28,826  
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Analysis of total funds – Group 2016 

    Revaluation       

  General Property Investment Total Designated Endowment Total 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

At 31 March 2015       11,380  13,327  3,545  16,872  4,521  716  33,489  

Net income / expenditure (3,928)  -    -    -    -    -    (3,928)  

Other comprehensive income -    1,287  -    1,287  -    -    1,287  

Total comprehensive income (3,928)  1,287  -    1,287  -    -    (2,641)  

Transfer between funds               

- revaluation of investments 1,232  -    (1,232)  (1,232)  -    -    -    

-depreciation of revalued 
amount 48  (48)  

                              
-    (48)  

                              
-    

                                 
-    

                              
-    

-designation of funds (363)  -    -    -    363  -    -    

At 31 March 2016  8,369  14,566  2,313  16,879  4,884  716  30,848  

 

The transfer of £487k to the revaluation reserve from the general fund in 2017 (£48k from the reserve in 2016) 

represents the difference between the depreciation charged on the revalued amount and the historical cost 

depreciation that would have been charged if they had not been revalued offset by the reduction of the asset value 

at valuation to reflect an increase in the required repairs and improvements identified as part of the development 

project site surveys. 

The revaluation funds represent the difference between the book value of re-valued assets and their depreciated 

historical cost. Designated funds represent funds set aside by the Trustees for specific purposes. The Endowment 

is a capital fund donated to the Group for long term retention and investment; the balance as at the accounting 

period-end represents the original gift and all subsequent capital growth. The General fund represents the balance 

of the net income of the Group since inception. 

Analysis of total funds – Association 2017 

  Revaluation     

 General Property Investment Total Designated Endowment Total 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

at 31 March 2016   8,319   14,566   2,313   16,879   4,884   716   30,798  

Net income / 
expenditure (2,066)   -     -     -     -     -    (2,066)  

Other comprehensive 
income  -     43   -     43   -     -     43  

Total comprehensive 
income (2,066)   43   -     43   -     -     (2,023)  

Transfer between funds        

- revaluation of 
investments (670)   -     670   670   -     -     -    

-depreciation of 
revalued amount (486)   486   -     486   -     -     -    

-designation of funds (370)   -     -     -     370   -     -    

at 31 July 2017  4,727   15,095   2,983   18,078   5,254   716   28,775  
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Analysis of total funds – Association 2016 

  Revaluation     

  General Property Investment Total Designated Endowment Total 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

at 31 March 2015 11,330  13,327  3,545  16,872  4,521  716  33,439  

Net income / 
expenditure (3,928)  

                              
-    

                              
-    

                              
-    

                              
-    

                                 
-    (3,928)  

Other comprehensive 
income 

                   
-    

                    
1,287  

                              
-    

                    
1,287  

                              
-    

                                 
-    

                    
1,287  

Total comprehensive 
income (3,928)  

                    
1,287  

                              
-    

                    
1,287  

                              
-    

                                 
-    (2,641)  

Transfer between funds               

- revaluation of 
investments 

         
1,232  

                              
-    (1,232)  (1,232)  

                              
-    

                                 
-    

                              
-    

-depreciation of 
revalued amount 

                 
48  (48)  

                              
-    (48)  

                              
-    

                                 
-    

                              
-    

-designation of funds 
(363)  

                              
-    

                              
-    

                              
-    

                         
363  

                                 
-    

                              
-    

at 31 March 2016  
         

8,319  
                 

14,566  
                    

2,313  
                 

16,879  
                    

4,884  
                           

716  
                 

30,798  

 

Analysis of Group net assets between funds at 31 July 2017 

 General 
Designated & 

revaluation 

Endowment 

Funds Total Funds 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Charitable fixed assets 2,172  15,096  -  17,268  

Investments 4,773  8,237  716  13,726  

Current assets  2,442   -     -     2,442  

Current liabilities (4,278)   -     -    (4,278)  

Long term liabilities (332)   -     -    (332)  

   4,777   23,333   716   28,826  

 

Analysis of Group net assets between funds at 31 March 2016  

Fund balances at 31 March 2016 are 
represented by: General 

Designated & 
revaluation 

Endowment  
Funds Total Funds 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Charitable fixed assets          2,022  14,566  -    16,588  

Investments          6,511  7,197  -    13,708  

Current assets          3,474  -    716  4,190  

Current liabilities (3,303)  -    -    (3,303)  

Long term liabilities (335)  -    -    (335)  

           8,369  21,763  716  30,848  

 

 

Analysis of the Association net assets between funds at 31 July 2017 

Fund balances at 31 July 2017 are represented 
by: General 

Designated & 
revaluation 

Endowment  
Funds Total Funds 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Charitable fixed assets  2,173   15,095  -  17,268  

Investments 4,773  8,237  716  13,726  

Current assets 2,362  -    -  2,362  

Current liabilities (4,249)   -     -    (4,249)  

Long term liabilities (332)     -     -     (332)   

   4,727   23,332   716   28,775  
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Analysis of the Association net assets between funds at 31 March 2016 

Fund balances at 31 March 2016  are represented by: General 
Designated & 

revaluation 
Endowment  

Funds Total Funds 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Charitable fixed assets          2,022  14,566  -    16,588  

Investments          6,511  7,197  -    13,708  

Current assets               3,424  -    716  4,140  

Current liabilities (3,303)  -    -    (3,303)  

Long term liabilities 
                   

(335)    -    -    (335)    

           8,319  21,763  716  30,798  

 

16 Designated funds – the Group and the Association 

The funds of the Association include the following designated funds which have been set aside from unrestricted 

funds by the Trustees for specific purposes. 

  Balance at 31 
March 2015 

Set aside / 
(utilised) in 

2016 
 Balance at 31 

March 2016  

Set aside / 
(utilised) in 

2017 

Balance at 31 
July 
2017 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Great Russell Street Development Fund  4,250   370   4,620   370   4,990  

Basil Scott fund  271  (7)   264   -     264  

Total  4,521   363   4,884   370   5,254  

 

 

The Great Russell Street development fund is for the cost of refurbishment of the Club premises. The Basil Scott 

Fund is to provide income to fund educational grants in the name of the late Mr Scott.  

17 Restricted funds – the Group and the Association 

    

 Balance at 31 
March 2016  Incoming Outgoing 

 Balance at 31 July 
2017 

Income funds   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Health and fitness activities    -     37  (37)   -    

Training courses    -     108  (108)   -    

     -  145  (145)   -  

 

Capital funds 

Endowment Fund 
  

 716   -     -     716  

     716   -  -   716  

 

 

The training course funds represent income received towards projects to assist ‘hard to reach’ populations to obtain 

qualifications. Health and Fitness activities represent the balance of donations received to assist users of the club – 

in particular for those with HIV/AIDS. The endowment fund is a legacy from the estate of the late Dr Charles Clark, 

income from which, will be used to assist young people suffering personal problems to achieve specified goals 

which will contribute to their life chances and personal fulfilment. 
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18 Restructuring costs 

Items which relate restructuring are as follows: 

   Group     Association  

  2017  2016    2017  2016  

  16 months 12 months   16 months 12 months 

   £’000   £’000     £’000   £’000  

YMCA Training               689                           705                                  689    705 

Awards                    -                                  -                                    -                                  -    

FIT                    6                                  -                                    6                                 -    

Central Services                    71                                 -                                    71                                 -    

                766                           705                                  766   705 

 

The Group (and Association) incurred £759k of restructuring costs during 2017 (£705k 2016). These are in line with 

the strategic objectives of the organisation and will give YMCA Training a stronger platform for growth and 

development in the coming years. (Note that following the merger, the expenditure of YMCA Training and London 

YMCA are reported as though it was incurred by the Parent Association).  

19 Reconciliation of overall surplus/ (deficit) to net cash outflow from operating 

activities 

  2017  2016  

  16 months 12 months 

   £’000   £’000  

Overall deficit (2,022)  (2,641)  

Investment income (563)  (402)  

Investment revaluation  127                      1,123  

Property revaluation (43)  (1,287)  

Depreciation charges   801                           649  

Decrease in stock  2                              33  

Decrease in debtors 57                     1,158  

(Decrease) / increase in creditors (534)                             84 

Surplus on investments sold (2,546)  (859)  

Net cash outflow from operating activities (4,721)  (2,142)  

 

20 Capital commitments – the Group and the Association 

There were no capital commitments at 31 March 2016. As at 31 July 2017 a capital commitment for the club 

refurbishment contract amounting to £1,267k was part way through completion with £597k being spent by 31 July 

2017. The project end date is December 2017. 

21 Operating lease commitments - the Group and association 

The following represent the leasing commitments: 

  

Land and 
buildings Other   

Land and 
buildings Other 

 31 July 31 July  31 March 31 March 

  2017  2017    2016  2016  

   £’000   £’000     £’000   £’000  

Commitments falling due            

within 12 months  249   5    478   20  

within 1 to 2 years                                     166   5    219   9  

within 2 to 5 years                                           3   3    39   3  

After 5 years  -     -      -     -    

   418   13    736   32  
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22 Related party transactions  

Owing to the diverse nature of the charity’s operations and the number of activities that work in partnership with 

other charities and public-sector bodies, transactions may take place with organisations where Members of the 

Board have an interest. Any transactions involving such charities or organisations are conducted at arm’s length 

and in accordance with the Charity’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures. 

The only related party transactions that took place during the financial period was: 

Andree Deane (Director of Education and Skills) was a Trustee of Timebank a charity focused on providing 

volunteers to deliver mentoring projects to tackle complex social problems. Timebank hired space in our OneKX 

facility during the period. Andree was not party to discussions in regard to any short term letting agreements. 

No donations were received from Board members or senior managers in the period. 

As per note 14 £94k (£nil 2016) was owed by the Association to YMCA Trading at 31 July 2017. Central YMCA Trading 

Ltd provides sports facilities, markets items derived from the activities of the Association and undertakes other non-

primary purpose trading activities. The profits of this subsidiary are paid by gift aid to the Association. 

Central YMCA, as the founding YMCA, was also part of the YMCA Movement in England in the period. 
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Reference and administration details 

Charity number 213121 

Company number 119249 

Registered office 112 Great Russell Street, London WC1B 3NQ 

Trading Names and Associated 

Websites 

Central YMCA  

YMCA Training 

YMCA Awards 

YMCAfit  

YMCA Club 

OneKX  

www.ymca.co.uk 

www.ymcatraining.org.uk  

www.ymcaawards.co.uk  

www.ymcafit.org.uk 

www.ymcaclub.co.uk  

www.ymcaonekx.co.uk  

Auditor Nexia Smith & Williamson 

25 Moorgate 

London EC2R 6AY 

Bankers Royal Bank of Scotland  

62/63 Threadneedle Street 

London EC2R 8LA 

CCLA Investment Management Ltd  

85 Queen Victoria Street  

London, EC4V 4ET 

Solicitors Bircham Dyson Bell 

50 Broadway 

London SW1H 0BL 

Property advisors Montagu Evans 

5 Bolton Street  

London W1J 8BA 

Investment managers Rothschild Private Management Ltd 

New Court, St Swithin’s Lane  

London EC4N 8AL 

Patron Our Patron is The Lord Remnant, CVO, FCA. 

Directors and Trustees The directors of the charitable company (the Association) are its Trustees for the 

purposes of charity law. Throughout this report they are referred to as Trustees. 

Trustees serving during the financial 

period and since the year-end 

Mark Andrews 

Philippa Campbell 

Charlotte Dickens 

Glenn Dunn 

Anthony Griffiths  

Colleen Harris MVO DL 

Robert Harrison 

The Lord Hayward OBE 

Janice Lloyd 

Kern Roberts  

Philip Rogerson  

Susan Ross-Morton 

Allan Smith 

Chair – appointed June 2017 

Honorary Treasurer 

 

Appointed September 2016 

 

 

 

Vice Chair – resigned September 2017 

Appointed September 2017 

 

Chair – resigned June 2017 

 

 

None of the Trustees receive any emoluments nor have any Trustees had a beneficial interest in the shares of Central YMCA’s other 
subsidiary undertakings. Expenses reimbursed to Trustees are shown in Note 8 to the accounts.  
Trustee indemnity insurance was purchased during the period at a cost of £11,108 (2016: £8,322). 

Senior employees Chief Executive  

Group Finance 

Director/Company 

Secretary 

Rosi Prescott  

Andy Chesters (retired 31 May 2016) 

Aimee Henderson (appointed 1 June 2016) 

 

http://www.ymca.co.uk/
http://www.ymcatraining.org.uk/
http://www.ymcaawards.co.uk/
http://www.ymcafit.org.uk/
http://www.ymcaclub.co.uk/
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